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NOTICE TO MEMBERS
Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Willdale Limited will be held in
the Boardroom, Willdale Administration Block, Teneriffe Factory, 19.5km peg Lomagundi Road,
Mount Hampden on Thursday 29 March 2018 at 11.00 hours for the purpose of transacting the
following business:
Ordinary Business
1. To receive and adopt the financial statements and report of the Directors for 		
the year ended 30 September 2017;
2. To approve the fees for the Directors
3. To re-elect Ernst & Young as auditors for the ensuing year.
4. To approve audit fees for the year ended 30 September 2017
5. To re-elect the following Directors who retire in terms of the Company’s Articles of
Association and who, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election:
5.1 U. Duske
5.2 C. Makoni
6.

To consider the appointment as Dr of Mr B K Mataruka who was appointed after the last
Annual General Meeting.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint one or more proxies to
attend, vote and speak in their stead. The proxy need not be a member of the company.
To be effective, the proxy must be lodged at the company’s registered office at least forty-eight
hours before the appointed time for the Meeting.
by Order of the Board

M Munginga
Company Secretary
2 March 2018

3

VISION, MISSION AND CORE VALUES
VISION

To be the leading manufacturer of world class clay bricks.
								

MISSION

To manufacture and distribute affordable world class clay bricks using 		
appropriate technology, enhance employee satisfaction and optimize 		
returns to our community and shareholders.
								

CORE
VALUES

Our core values are:
Customer satisfaction | Human dignity | Quality assurance
Integrity | Care for environment | Teamwork
					

STRATEGIC
GOAL

Low cost producer								
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DIRECTORATE
AND ADMINISTRATION			
									

												
CHAIRMAN												
A C Jongwe												
												
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS											
G A Chigora		
M A Gumbie		
B K Mataruka				
U Duske 		
C Makoni		
M G Revanowako
					
											
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 										N
Matonda (Chief Executive) | M Munginga (Finance Director) 							
		
BOARD COMMITTEES										
FINANCE & AUDIT		 HUMAN RESOURCES		
STRATEGEY & OPERATIONS			
G A Chigora (Chairman)		
M G Revanowako (Chair)		
M A Gumbie (Chairman)
A C Jongwe			
M A Gumbie			
G A Chigora; U Duske		
C Makoni			
A C Jongwe			
M G Revanowako				
													
SECRETARY			M Munginga								
				Teneriffe Factory | 19.5km peg. Lomagundi Road					
				Mount Hampden
							
Transfer Secretaries		First Transfer Secretaries (Private) Limited						
				1 Armagh Road , Eastlea								
				HARARE								
												
Auditors			Ernst & Young								
				Chartered Accountants (Zimbabwe)					
				1st Floor Angwa City								
				Kwame Nkrumah Avenue/Julius Nyerere Way					
				HARARE									
BANKERS			
CBZ Bank			ZB Bank			FBC Bank			
Westgate Branch			
Avondale Branch		
FBC Centre Branch		
HARARE				HARARE			HARARE		
												
Legal Practitioners		
Muzangaza, Mandaza &		
Honey & Blanckenberg		
Dube, Manikai & Hwacha		
Tomana				
200 Hebert Chitepo Ave		
Commercial Law Chambers		
Mercury House			HARARE				6th Floor, Goldbridge		
Jason Moyo Avenue						Eastgate		
HARARE								HARARE		
												
Postal Address		
Registered Office | Factory		
Teneriffe | 19.5km peg, Lomagundi Road									
P O Box MR 93, Marlborough		
Mount Hampden									
HARARE
												
Telephones
Sales | +263 4-334 623
Head offices | +263 4-308 062
Town Sales Office | 263-4-777197-9
Factory | +263 4-303 186
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Email: marketing@willdale.co.zw

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
SEPTEMBER
2017
US$
9,683,280

5
SEPTEMBER
2016
US$
7,761,998

Revenue
644,380

383,394

Operating profit
13,649,871

13,202,889

Net assets
1,143,146

233,604

Operating cash generated
0.017

0.002

0.017

0.002

(Loss)/profit per share (cents)

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (cents)
1,778,001,428

1,778,001,428

1,778,001,428

1,778,001,428

Number of ordinary
shares in issue
Weighted average
number of ordinary
shares in issue
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			CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
				
Overview											
The economic environment was characterized by foreign currency shortages which affected the
importation of critical plant spares and increased input costs. 					
											
Annual inflation crept into positive territory for the first time since 2009 ending the year on 0.78%.
Volumes increased as consumers sought sanctuary in property investments. However, heavy rains
experienced between November 2016 and March 2017 affected work in progress resulting in significant
brick losses. As a result margins were negatively affected. 			
Financial Results										
Revenue increased by 25% to $9.7 million compared to the prior year driven by a 23% increase in sales
volumes and a 3% increase in average prices. Operating profit grew to $0.6 million (2016: $0.4 million)
after charging $1 million to depreciation of property, plant and equipment (2016: $0.9 million) and
taking into account $0.3 million in other income (2016: $0.09 million). Profitability remains weighed
down by interest expenses with a net interest charge of $0.8m (2016: $0.7m). Net cash flows generated
from operations increased to $1.1 million compared to the prior year’s $0.2 million. Capital expenditure
for the year amounted to $0.3 million and was financed through cash flows from operations.		
												
		
Shareholders approved the disposal of a piece of land at an extraordinary general meeting held on 24
May 2017. Negotiations with a potential buyer are at an advanced stage. Proceeds of sale will be used
to retire interest bearing debt. The piece of land has been accounted for as an asset held for sale in the
financial statements. 										
					
Production
The heavy rains adversely affected work in clamp kilns resulting in significant brick loses in the second
quarter of the year under review. Measures have been taken to minimize such losses in the future.
Measures have also been put in place to improve plant availability going forward. Production post the
rainy season was delayed due to delays experienced in commissioning part of the plant as a result of
challenges met in securing imported spares. Capacity utilization averaged 60% (2016: 55%). Green and
fired production volumes increased by 30% and 58% respectively despite the delayed commencement
of production.											
				
The average cost of production declined by 1% compared to the prior year. Sufficient maintenance work
will be undertaken during the shutdown period to improve plant availability in the next production
season.												
			
Sales and Marketing								
Sales volumes increased by 23% compared to the prior year as demand surged driven by individual
home developers, cluster home developments and schools. These sectors are expected to continue to
drive sales into the foreseeable future together with student accommodation at tertiary institutions
and proposed universities and shopping malls. Superior product and service quality will continue to
support the brand as we push to consolidate our position as the preferred brick supplier in the market.
										
The specialized transport service launched in the prior year continued to provide better handling
and convenience to customers. The fleet will be expanded subject to availability of foreign currency.
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Human Resources									
The industrial relations climate was satisfactory during the year under review. Close focus will be
on effective performance management in order to improve productivity and rationalize staff costs.
Strategic engagements will continue to be made with staff through various forums including Works
Councils and the National Employment Council. 							
								
Directorate											
Mr. Maxen Philip Karombo retired from the board at the Annual General meeting held on 30 March
2017. We thank him for his immense contribution to the company during his tenure. We welcome Mr
Brian Kudzai Mataruka who was appointed to the board with effect from 1 June 2017. 			
				
Outlook											
We are encouraged by the optimism prevailing in the construction industry that is driven by the growing
demand for housing, institutional and infrastructure development which we anticipate to continue into
the future. We will find alternative ways of securing imported spares and consumables to maintain and/
or improve our plant capacity and availability.							
						
Going Concern
The Board is confident that the Company will continue to operate as a going concern for the foreseeable
future and, as a result, financial statements for the period under review have been prepared using
the going concern basis. The Board’s view is based on the successful implementation of its strategic
plans, continued support from current financiers and suppliers and other initiatives that the Board is
undertaking to improve the Company’s performance.						
										
Dividend											
The directors have resolved not to pay a dividend with respect to the year ended 30 September 2017 to
preserve cash for working capital.									
							
Appreciation										
On behalf of the Board and Shareholders, I am grateful to our valued customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders for their unwavering support. I also want to commend management and staff for their
efforts in a difficult operating environment. I wish everyone a better and prosperous new year.		
												
		
												
				

A C Jongwe											
Chairman											
							
7 December 2017										
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS		
September
2017
US$

September
2016
US$

20,116,491

23,665,369

42,634

24,584

116,101

228,893

7,959,845

3,684,440

28,235,071

27,603,285

Accounts payable and provisions

(3,271,364)

(2,681,886)

Borrowings

(6,871,876)

(6,583,553)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Property, plant & equipment
Investment in joint venture
Lease receivable
Current assets
Total Assets

lease payable

(228,892)

(328,720)

(4,213,068)

(4,806,238)

13,649,871

13,202,889

88,900

88,900

Asset Revaluation Reserve

7,914,204

7,914,204

Accumulated profit

5,504,691

5,199,785

13,507,795

13,202,889

9,683,280

7,761,998

Operating profit

644,380

383,394

Interest income

43,209

7,950

Interest expense

(833,777)

(701,223)

(Loss)/Profit before taxation

(146,188)

(309,879)

451,094

342,004

Deferred taxation
Net Assets
Share capital

Shareholders’ funds
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Revenue

Taxation
(Loss)/Profit for the year

304,906

32,125

304,906

32,125

Cash generated from operating activities

1,547,117

530,689

Net interest paid

(403,971)

(297,086)

Net cash generated from operations

1,143,146

233,604

Cash utilised in investing activities

(200,295)

(107,099)

Cash utilised from financing activities

(579,542)

(777,471)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

363,309

(650,966)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
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2017

2016

1,778,001,428

1,778,001,428

0.76

0.74

0.017

0.002

Share Statistics
No. of ordinary shares in issue
Net worth per share (cents)
Basic( loss)/earnings per share (cents)

												
Profitability and asset management
Operating profit/(loss) to sales

7%

5%

0.71

0.59

Operating profit to capital employed

3%

2%

Return on ordinary shareholders’ funds

2%

0%

309%

110%

Current ratio

1.62

1.03

Total liabilities to total shareholders funds

1.09

1.09

Borrowings to shareholders funds

0.51

0.50

463

463

20,914

16,765

1,392

828

309,466

99,011

Net asset turn (times)

Effective rate of taxation

Liquidity

Employees
No. of employees
Total turnover per employee
Operating profit per employee
Capital expenditure

DEFINITIONS
Net worth per share:

Equity divided by the number of shares in issue

Operating profit/
(loss):

Profit/(loss) before taxation and interest

Total liabilities:

Medium and long term borrowings and current liabilities

Net assets:

Property, plant and equipment, investments and current assets less noninterest bearing current liabilities,

Equity:

Share capital, share premium capital reserve and retained income (loss)
minority interest, borrowings and deferred taxation.

Borrowings:

Interest bearing debt excluding convertible preference shares and convertible
debentures. Interest bearing debt not due in the coming financial year.

Net asset turn:

Turnover divided by average net assets

Long term
borriwings:

Interest bearing debt not due in the coming financial year.

Capital employed:

Equity and long term borrowings

Return on ordinary
equity:

Profit/(loss) for the year expressed as a percentage of average equity

Current ratio:

Current assets divided by current liabilities.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT			
					

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 30 September 2017.		
								

Authorised Share Capital

					

The authorised share capital of the company as at 30 September 2017
was US$150 325.50 (one hundred and fifty thousand three hundred
and twenty five United States dollars and fifty cents) divided into 3
000 000 000 (three billion) ordinary shares of US$0.00005 each and
3,255,000 (three million two hundred and fifty five thousand) 10%
redeemable cumulative preference shares of $0.0001 each. 		

								
Issued Share Capital						

As at 30 September 2017 the issued share capital of the company
was US$89,225.50 divided into 1 778 001 428 ordinary shares of
US$0.00005 each and 3,255,000 (three million two hundred and
fifty five thousand) 10% redeemable cumulative preference shares
of $0.0001 each. The balance of the authorised, but unissued, share
capital comprising 1 221 998 572 ordinary shares remained under the
control of the directors.
The preference shares, which were issued on 10 June 2014, are
redeemable from year 3 to year 5 and convertible at the 5th anniversary
from the issue date.						

								
Loans								

Details of borrowings as at 30 September 2017 are given in note 16 of
the financial statements. 						

								
Property, Plant and Equipment

Capital expenditure during the year amounted to US$309,466
(2016:US$99,011).
					

Directorate		

					

The names of the directors in office at the date of this report, as well as
the name and business and postal address of the Secretary, are set out
on page 4.								

Directors’ Fees							

A resolution will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to
approve directors’ fees amounting to $109,402 in respect of the year
under review.								

Auditors

A resolution to fix the remuneration for the past audit will be proposed
at the Annual General Meeting. The auditors Ernst & Young have
notified their willingness to continue in office and a resolution to
re-appoint them until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting will also be proposed.
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Financial Reporting									

Financial results are based on statutory records that are maintained under the historical cost basis except
for land and buildings included in property, plant and equipment that have been measured at fair value
and assets classified as held for sale which are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less cost to sale. The financial results in all material respects, have been prepared applying applicable
accounting policies that are consistent with the prior year, adjusted for changes/amendments effective for
the current year.

									
Going Concern
								

The Company made an after tax profit of $304, 906 in the current financial year (2016: $32,125 profit). 		
Incessant rains that started early and continued until April 2018 affected work in kilns resulting in above
normal brick losses. The rains also delayed the start of the production season. A penalty rate of interest
was charged by the bank when the company defaulted in paying monthly loan installments resulting in
interest charges increasing by 14% compared to the prior year charge. The operating environment was
characterized by foreign currency shortages and business uncertainty due to inconsistent government
policies and a declining economy.
								
These conditions give rise to a material uncertainty which may cast doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue operating as a going concern and to realize its assets and discharge its obligations in the normal
course of business.											
							
The Directors have assessed the ability of the company to continue as a going concern on a continuous
basis and believe that the going concern assumption used in the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate because of the following reasons:								
The business outlook presents significant opportunities in terms of sales volume growth, profitability and
cash flow generation. This is evidenced by several construction projects that are planned for the near future
such as university accommodation, cluster housing development and general housing development by
both government and the private sector. The directors have put in place measures to increase production,
turnover and preserve cash to mitigate material uncertainties over future trading results and cash flows.		
							
The company continues to focus on cost management and this has resulted in a 1% reduction in the unit
cost of production and at least 30% decrease in production labor costs compared to the prior year. The
Directors believe that with sufficient market for the product, its operating model which focuses on high
volumes, increased market share and consequently a lower cost of production is sustainable and profitable
going forward. 												
						
The creditors have continued to support the company in view of the initiatives that the directors have put
in place to be profitable and generate sufficient cash flows. The bank loan was restructured with effect
from May 2017. There is no pending litigation with creditors. Statutory creditors have been paid up to date.
At an extraordinary general meeting held on 24 May 2017, shareholders approved the disposal of 190.1
hectares of Tenerife land. Negotiations are at an advanced stage with potential buyers. Proceeds from the
sale of the land will be utilized to retire interest bearing debt. The CBZ Bank loan was restructured during
the year and about 62% of the loan is now payable over an extended period of 5 years.				
													
The directors therefore have a reasonable expectation that the company has resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For these reasons, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements. This basis assumes that the
company’s plans will be successful and that the realization of assets and settlement of liabilities will occur
in the ordinary course of business.										
							
The financial position of the company, its cash flows, liquidity and borrowing facilities are described in
the Summary of financial Statements on page 8. In addition, note 18 to the financial statements includes
the company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital; its financial risk management
objectives; details of its financial instruments; and its exposure to credit and liquidity risk.
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Corporate Governance								

The Finance and Audit Committee, chaired by non-executive director Mr G A Chigora, has met regularly. The
Remuneration Committee chaired by Mrs M G Revanewako and the Operations and Strategy Committee
chaired by Mr M A Gumbie have met as and when necessary. Board meetings have been held every
quarter and additional board meetings were held to deal with urgent issues. The Annual General Meeting
was held on 30 March 2017 at which, in addition to the ordinary business, the Articles of Association of the
Company were amended to incorporate electronic transmission of documents and the issue of shares in
dematerialized form. 									
An extraordinary general meeting was held on 24 May 2017 where the sale of 190.1 hectares of land was
approved.									
During the year notices were sent to shareholders containing the abridged financial results for the year
ended 30 September 2016 and for the six months to 31 March 2017.						

			
									
By Order of the Board

									
M Munginga									
Company Secretary 									
8 December 2017										
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

		
Compliance										

Willdale endeavors to operate to the best of ethical standards in accordance with accepted corporate
governance paradigms which conform to the requirements of the Principles of Corporate Governance
in Zimbabwe as contained in the Manual of Best Practice, and in full compliance with the requirements
of the Zimbabwe Stock Exchange.									
						
The Board of Directors is responsible for formulating the overall policies and strategies of the
company, including regular review of delegated authority to management, supervision of corporate
performance, human resources and ensuring that effective financial and operational controls are
adhered to.											
					
The Board comprises seven non-executive Directors and two executive Directors, the Chief Executive
Officer and Finance Director. The non-executive Directors bring a combination of major shareholder
representation and specialized advisory skills to the board.						
Board meetings are held every three months in order to review quarterly financial statements and
all aspects of operations. Additional Board meetings are held when necessary. At all Board meetings,
Directors are required to review and sign a circulating Declaration of Interest file, in which any changes
are updated. It is not a requirement of the Articles of Association for Directors to hold shares.

												
			
Board Meeting Attendance by non-executive Directors 2017				
								
DIRECTOR
15/12/2016 16/2/2017 24/5/2017 24/8/2017
		
A C Jongwe		√		√		√		√			
G A Chigora		√		√		√		√			
M A Gumbie		 √		 √		 √		 √		
MP Karombo		x		√		n/a		n/a			
C Makoni		x		√		√		√		
MG Rewanowako
√		 √		 √		 √			
U Duske		√		√		√		√			
B K Mataruka		n/a		n/a		√		√			
											
Management Committee									
The Management Committee comprises two executive Directors and the senior departmental
managers. It meets weekly and records of its proceedings are available to non-executive Directors. It
is charged with the day to day running of the Company and is responsible to the Board, for which it
prepares all financial statements, budgets, strategic and operational reports.			

											
Finance & Audit Committee 							

The Finance and Audit Committee comprises of three non-executive Directors. The Company
Secretary who is also the Finance Director, the Chief Executive Officer and representatives of the
external auditors also attend the committee’s meetings by invitation.					
						
It meets quarterly to review the interim financial statements. It also reviews half year and year end
financial statements prior to their final approval by the board and subsequent publication. The
Finance and Audit Committee ensures that internal financial controls and audits are carried out and it
has direct access to the external auditors. It also reviews recommendations and requirements of the
International Financial Reporting Standards and ensures compliance as applicable to the Company’s
activities.											
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During the year Finance and Audit Committee meetings were held and attended as follows;		

												
MEMBER

18/11/2016

13/12/2016

				
G A Chigora
C Makoni
A C Jongwe
B K Mataruka

√		
√		
√		
n/a

14/2/2017

√		
x		
√		
n/a		

23/5/2017

√		
√		
√		
n/a		

√		
√		
√		
n/a		

22/8/2017

26/9/2017

√		
√		
√		
√		

√
√
√
√

												
Human Resources Committee

The Human Resources Committee is charged with setting the remuneration packages for the executive and senior
management, which are reviewed in accordance with their individual contributions to the company’s performance.
The Committee also sets guidelines for remuneration of employees within the industry, and is also responsible for the
policy relating to incentive bonuses. The HR Commitee comprises of four non-executive Directors and the Finance
Director and the Chief Executive Officer attend by invitation.								
					
During the year Human Resources Committee meetings were held and attended as follows;			

											
MEMBER
15/12/2016 16/2/2017
24/5/2017
23/8/2017					
		
M G Revanowako
√		√		√		√				
M A Gumbie		√		√		√		√				
A C Jongwe		√		√		√		√				
M P Karombo		x		x		n/a		n/a				
B K Mataruka		n/a		n/a		√		√
				
		

											
Strategy And Operations Committee							

The Strategy and Operations Committee reviews the various strategic and operational plans and monitors
implementation of such plans. It meets quarterly and, additionally, its members are available for consultation by
management as and when necessary. The Committee comprises of five non-executive directors. The Finance Director
and the Chief Executive Officer attend by invitation.		
							

						

During the year Strategy and Operations Committee meetings were held and attended as follows;

				 				

											
MEMBER
13/12/2016 19/1/2017
23/1/2017
14/2/2017
20/3/2017
				 23/5/2017
8/6/2017
6/7/2017
22/8/2017
G A Chigora		
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
M A Gumbie 		
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
M P Karombo		
x
x
x
x
x
x
na
na
na
M G Revanowako
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
U Duske			
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√											

27/4/2017
14/9/2017
√
√
√
√
na
na
√
√
√
√

Internal Controls											

Management constantly checks and reviews the systems which are designed to provide maximum accountability
at all levels. Such programmes include the checking of both income and expenses budgets against actual results,
monitoring loss prevention and measures to detect any irregularities or fraud. A regular report is furnished to directors
on a quarterly basis, but any items considered to be of a serious nature are communicated immediately.			

													
Ethics 										

Directors, Management and staff are required to maintain the highest possible standards of business ethics and
accountability, and appropriate disciplinary measures are in place in the event of any lapses.				
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Employment Policy											
It is company policy to carry out regular training and development programmes at all employee levels.
Overall policy advocates equal opportunity regardless of gender or race, and through a professional human
resources department, measures are in place to reward and develop staff according to their recognizable
talents and abilities. Employees are regularly informed of issues affecting their jobs and work environment.
Works Council and workers committees provide effective channels for communication. A registered Code of
Conduct is operative.											

				
Safety, Health And Environment									
The company endeavours to operate with full regard for all health, safety and environmental measures
applicable to the industry. Training in health and safety issues is provided to staff and management monitors
standards.											

“BUILD TO LAST WITH WILLDALE BRICKS”
Annual Report 2017
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Ernst & Young

Chartered Accountants (Zimbabwe)
Registered Public Auditors
Angwa City
Cnr Julius Nyerere Way /
Kwame Nkrumah Avenue
P O Box 62 or 702
Harare
Zimbabwe

Tel: +263 4 750905-14 or 750979-83
Fax: +263 4 750707 or 773842
Email: admin@zw.ey.com
www.ey.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Willdale Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Willdale Limited set out on pages 21 to 56, which comprise
the company statement of financial position as at 30 September 2017, the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statements of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Willdale Limited as at 30 September 2017, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Company Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and other independence requirements applicable to
performing audits of financial statements in Zimbabwe. We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in t he Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
mat erial misst at ement of the financial st at ements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matt ers below, provide t he basis for our audit opinion on t he
accompanying financial st atements.
Key Audit Mat t er
Valuat ion of Land Held for Sale
In current year, the company reclassified land
amounting to $2.8 million from Property,
plant and equipment to Assets held for sale.
·An assessment was performed by the directors
on the fair value of t his land.
·The valuat ion of t he land is of a subjective
nature due to use of judgement , est imates and
assumpt ions in determining fair values. These
judgement s
have
a
higher
estimation
uncertainty as a result of the absence of an
active property market due to the current
liquidit y const raint s in t he market in
Zimbabwe, hence making comparability of
propert y
values
subjective.
Given
t he
significance of the balances to the company’s
financial statements there is a risk that the
values of this land might not be appropriat ely
det ermined.
· The assessment was based on the following;
• Freehold title of t he land and no
rest rictive conditions on title deeds
transfer.
• Survey diagram reliance from the
deeds regist ry.
Accordingly the valuation of t his land was
considered to be a key audit mat ter due to t he
impact of the assumptions and the related
complexity of the process which resulted in
significant audit effort in this area.
The details relating to the valuation of land and
buildings are disclosed in note 8 to t he financial
statements.
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How t he mat t er was addressed in t he audit
·We performed audit procedures which included among
others ;
Assessing whether the asset meets the crit eria
for classification as non-current assets held
for sale.
·Assessing the key assumptions and
methodologies used in the valuation by the
direct ors in determining the fair value of t he
land.
·Assessing management objectivity and
competency in performing the valuation.
Involving our team of valuation experts to
assist us wit h the review of assumptions and
met hodologies based on available market
information.
A
· ssessing the deferred tax impact of the
change in use of t he land from manufacturing
to held for sale.
Reviewing the appropriateness of the
disclosures in line with IFRS 5 Non – Current
Assets Held for Sale requirement s.
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Valuat ion and measurement of Invent ory and
Cost of Sales
At 30 Sept ember 2017, t he Company’s inventory
was valued at $2,5 million. The Company is a
manufacturing entit y therefore, inventory may be
incorrectly valued as a result of the following:
· he incorrect determination of the costs used
T
in t he stock valuation as this method involves a
high degree of estimation and incorrect cost
build up may be used.
·Excess amount s of brick losses being included
in inventory and cost of sales. The industry
norm for brick losses is 10% of the cost of
production. In t he current year, brick losses
amounting to $ 1,269 million were included as
part of invent ory and cost of sales, mainly as a
result of excessive rains during the year
resulting in damage to bricks that were in
production.
·Determining the st age of completion of the
bricks in work in progress that were damaged
involves estimation. There is risk t hat these
losses may be understated due to incorrect
determination of t he stage of completion, t hus
understating the costs incurred for the bricks
damaged.
As a result of the matters noted above, we
identified measurement and valuation of inventory
as a key audit matter as it is an area which required
significant auditor attention.
We refer to Note 10 of the financial statements for
relevant disclosures.

We performed audit procedures which included
among ot hers:
· eviewing t he invent ory valuations in
R
accordance
wit h
Group
policy
and
Int ernational
Accounting
Standard
2
‘’Invent ories.
·Performing tests at year-end to confirm
if inventory is carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable
value as required by
International Accounting Standard 2
·Evaluating the assumptions and estimat es
applied t o the brick losses calculations by
t esting the accuracy of historical information
and trends, against the current balances,
as well
as by performing analytical
procedures on the brick losses levels and
write down rat es.
·We reviewed t he throughput reconciliation
of bricks produced and sold, on a mont hly basis
and we verified the inputs into the
reconciliation. The main inputs include clay,
coal, labour and electricit y.
·We
recalculated
variances
between
the t heoretical stock and actual stock on
hand and compared
these
to
the
acceptable variance t hreshold
of
10%.
Monthly stock counts are performed to
determine physical stock on hand.
·We verified explanations obtained from
management for months in which the
variance was above t he 10% acceptable
threshold.
·Reviewing the inventory valuations in
accordance with
Group
policy
and
International
Accounting
St andard
2
‘’Invent ories.

Ot her informat ion
Other information consists of the information included in the Annual Report, other than the financial
statements and our auditors report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the ot her
information and, in doing so, consider whether t he other information is mat erially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obt ained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained
prior to the date of this auditor’s report , we conclude that t here is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilit ies of the Direct ors for t he Financial Stat ement s
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of t he Companies
Act (Chapter 24:03), and for such internal control as the direct ors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Audit or’s Responsibilit ies for t he Audit of t he Financial St at ement s
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement s as a whole
are free from material misstatement , whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
t hat an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always det ect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatement s can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of t hese financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout t he audit . We also:
·

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a mat erial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresent ations, or the override of internal cont rol.

·

Obtain an understanding of internal cont rol relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumst ances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s and the company’s internal control.

·

E
· valuate t he appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and relat ed disclosures made by the directors.

·

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s and the company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the company and/ or the company to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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·

·Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

·

·Obt ain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the company to express an opinion on the financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the company audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
t he audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in int ernal cont rol t hat
we identify during our audit.
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the direct ors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the mat ter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Ot her Legal and Regulat ory Requirements
In our opinion the financial statements have, in all material respects, been properly prepared
in compliance wit h t he disclosure requirements of the Companies’ Act (Chapter 24:03).
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mrs. C
Chakona (PAAB practising number 0431).

Ernst & Young
Chart ered Account ant s (Zimbabwe) Regist ered Public Audit ors
Harare
Dat e: 29 December 2017
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WILLDALE LIMITED AUDITED RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30
SEPTEMBER 2017
September

September

2017

2016

NOTES

US$

US$

3.1

9,683,280

7,761,998

Cost of sales

(7,445,615)

(5,844,848)

Gross profit

2,237,665

1,917,150

(509,610)

(428,262)

(1,356,873)

(1,180,757)

3.2

255,147

94,937

9

18,051

(19,674)

Operating profit

3.3

644,380

383,394

Interest income

4.1

43,209

7,950

Interest expense

4.1

(833,777)

(701,223)

(146,188)

(309,879)

451,094

342,004

304,906

32,125

304,906

32,125

0.017

0.002

0.017

0.002

Revenue

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses
Other income
Profit/(loss) from joint venture

Loss before tax
Tax

5

(Loss)/ Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Basic earnings per share - cents
Diluted earnings per share - cents

6

								

“BUILD TO LAST WITH WILLDALE BRICKS”
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30
SEPTEMBER 2017
September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

20,275,226

23,918,846

20,116,491

23,665,369

NOTES
Assets
Non current assets
Property,plant and equipment
Investment in joint venture
Finance lease receivable

8.1
9

42,634

24,584

12

116,101

228,893

7,959,845

3,684,440

Current assets
Inventory

10

2,540,632

2,616,174

Trade and other receivables

11

1,658,062

897,011

Finance lease receivable

12

112,791

99,827

Cash and cash equivalents

13

803,997

68,591

2,837

2,837

2,841,526

-

28,235,071

27,603,286

13,507,795

13,202,889

88,900

88,900

Asset revaluation reserve

7,914,204

7,914,204

Accumulated profits

5,504,691

5,199,785

9,820,175

10,837,520

15.3

4,213,068

4,806,238

Long term borrowings

16

5,491,006

5,802,389

Finance lease liability

12

116,101

228,893

Taxation receivable
Assets held for sale

8.5

Total assets
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital

14

Non current liabilities
Deferred taxation

Current liabilities

4,907,101

3,562,877

16

1,380,870

781,164

17.1

2,998,909

2,464,491

12

112,791

99,827

17.2

272,455

217,395

15

142,076

-

Total liabilities

14,727,276

14,400,397

Total equity and liabilities

28,235,071

27,603,286

Short term borrowings
Trade and other payables
Finance lease liability -current
portion
Provisions
Liabilities directly associated with
assets held for sale

								
Chief Executive Officer				Chairman

7 December 2017

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017
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As at 1 October 2015

Share
Capital

Assets
Revaluation
Reserve

Accumulated
Profit

Total
Equity

US$

US$

US$

US$

88,900

7,914,204

5,167,660

13,170,764

Profit for the year

-

-

32,125

32,125

As at 30 September 2016

88,900

7,914,204

5,199,785

13,202,889

Total comprehensive profit

-

-

304,906

304,906

As at 30 September 2017

88,900

7,914,204

5,504,691

13,507,795

				
NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

				

			

Assets revaluation reserve				
This reserve is used to record increases or decreases in the fair value of property, plant and
equipment.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30
SEPTEMBER 2017				
September
2017
US$

September
2016
US$

(146,188)

(309,879)

9

(18,051)

19,674

8.1

1,015,015

891,090

Loss/(profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

121

(12,884)

32,657

(4,121)

Notes
Loss before taxation
Adjustments for non-cash items:
(Profit)/Loss from joint venture
Depreciation
Provision for impairment of receivables
Movement in other provisions

55,059

137,300

Interest expense

833,777

701,223

Interest income

(43,209)

(7,950)

1,729,182

1,414,453

75,542

56,882

(793,708)

(369,960)

536,101

(570,686)

Cashflow before changes in working capital
Working capital changes
Decrease in inventory
Increase in accounts receivable
Increase/ (Decrease) in accounts payable
Cash generated from operating activities
Interest paid
Interest received
Net cash generated during the year

1,547,117

530,689

(447,180)

(305,036)

43,209

7,950

1,143,146

233,603

-

(44,258)

(309,466)

(99,011)

-

22,435

Investing activities
Investment in joint venture
Purchase of property, plant and equipment to
increase existing capacity

8.1

Proceeds on sale of property,plant and equipment
Lease installment receipts

109,171

13,735

(200,295)

(107,099)

250,000

-

Borrowings repayment

(720,371)

(763,736)

Lease repayments

(109,171)

(13,735)

(579,542)

(777,471)

363,309

(650,967)

(712,573)

(61,977)

Cash and bank

68,591

86,961

Bank overdraft

(781,164)

(148,938)

Conversion of overdraft to loan

412,500

-

Cash & cash equivalents at end of the year

63,236

(712,573)

Cashflow from investing activities
Financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings

Cashflow from financing activities
Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year

Cash and bank

11

803,997

68,591

Bank overdraft (Disclosed as part of short term
borrowings)

16

(740,761)

(781,164)
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
			

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION					
The consolidated financial statements of Willdale Limited for the year ended 30 September 2017 were
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 7 December 2017.		
		
Willdale Limited is a Company incorporated and domiciled in Zimbabwe. The Company’s main activity is the making and
selling of clay bricks.		
			

					

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

				

2.1 Statement of compliance					

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial reporting Standards (IFRS) and
the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee, (IFRIC) interpretations.
The financial statements are based on statutory records that are maintained on a historical cost basis except for land
and buildings included in property, plant and equipment that have been measured at fair value. Financial information is
presented in United States dollars					

2.2 Going Concern					

The Company made an after tax profit of $304 906 in the current financial year (2016:$32 125 profit), after charging interest
cost of US$833 777 (2016; US$701 223) to operating profit of US$ 644 380 (2016; US$383 394).				
						
The ability of the Company to continue to operate as a going concern is subject to continual assessment. The Board of
Directors have reviewed the status of the Company and its ability to continue to operate as a going concern, in the context
of the current year financial results and mitigating activities. In their assessment, the Board considered the following;		
								
Incessant rains that started early and continued until April 2017 affecting the work in kilns resulting in above normal brick
losses. The rains also delayed the start of the production season.					
The business still carries borrowings at high financing cost, resulting in increased interest charge during the year. The
operating environment was characterized by foreign currency shortages and business uncertainty due to inconsistent
government policies and a declining economy. 					
					
The Directors have assessed the ability of the company to continue as a going concern on a continuous basis and believe
that the going concern assumption used in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate because of the
following reasons:					

•

The business outlook presents significant opportunities in terms of sales volume growth, profitability and cash flow
generation. This is evidenced by several construction projects that are planned for the near future such as university
accommodation, cluster housing development and general housing development by both government and the
private sector. The directors have put in place measures to increase production, turnover and preserve cash to mitigate
material uncertainties over future trading results and cash flows.

•

The company continues to focus on cost management and this has resulted in a 2% reduction in the unit cost of
production and at least 30% decrease in production labour costs compared to the prior year. The Directors believe
that with sufficient market for the product, its operating model which focuses on high volumes, increased market
share and consequently a lower cost of production is sustainable and profitable going forward.
					
• The creditors have continued to support the company in view of the initiatives that the directors have put in place to
be profitable and generate sufficient cash flows. The bank loan was restructured with effect from May
2017. There is no pending litigation with creditors. Statutory creditors have been paid up to date.		
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•

At an extraordinary general meeting held on 24 May 2017, shareholders approved the disposal of 190.1
hectares of Tenerife land. Negotiations are at an advanced stage with potential buyers. Proceeds from
the sale of the land will be utilised to retire interest bearing debt. 				

•

The CBZ Bank loan was restructured during the year and about 62% of the loan is now payable over an
extended period of 5 years.					
					
The directors therefore have a reasonable expectation that the company has resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For these reasons, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements. This basis assumes that the company’s
plans will be successful and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities will occur in the ordinary
course of business.
										

2.3 BASIS OF EQUITY ACCOUNTING 					

The financial statements comprise the financial statements of Willdale Limited and its joint venture Willdale
Transport Services ( Pvt) Limited as at 31 September 2017.
					
The Company accounts for its investment in the joint venture using equity accounting. Equity accounting
is a method of accounting whereby the investment is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post-acquisition change in the Company’s share of net assets of the joint venture. The profit or loss
of the Company includes its share of the profit or loss of the joint venture and the other comprehensive
income of the Company includes its share of other comprehensive income of the joint venture.		

			
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

				

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year. In the current
year, the Company has applied a number of amendments to IFRS issued by the International Accounting
Standard Board that are effective for accounting periods that begins on or after 1 January 2016. There were
no specific amendments to IFRS which had a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.		

						
2.4 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE					

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are
listed below. This listing is of those standards and interpretations issued that the Company reasonably
expects to have an impact on disclosures, financial position or performance when applied at a future date.
The Company intends to adopt these standards when they become effective.					
					
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - classification and measurement 					
On 24 July 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued the final version of IFRS 9-Financial
Instruments bringing together the classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting
phases of the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all
previous versions of IFRS 9.
					
The classification and measurement requirements address specific application issues arising in IFRS 9 (2009)
that were raised by preparers, mainly from the financial services industry. The expected credit loss model
addresses concerns expressed following the financial crisis that entities recorded losses too late under IAS
39. IFRS 9 stipulates that financial assets are measured at amortised cost, fair value through profit or loss, or
fair value through other comprehensive income, based on both the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics.				
						
Apart from the ‘own credit risk’ requirements, classification and measurement of financial liabilities is
unchanged from existing requirements. IFRS 9 is applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, but early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 9.
										
IFRS 15- Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The IASB has issued the revenue recognition standard, IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
which replaces all existing IFRS revenue requirements. The core principle of IFRS 15 is that revenue is
recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.		
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IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model that will apply to revenue earned from a contract with a customer (with
limited exceptions), regardless of the type of revenue transaction or the industry. The standard’s requirements
will also apply to the recognition and measurement of gains and losses on the sale of some non-financial
assets that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary activities (e.g., sales of property, plant and equipment
or intangibles). Extensive disclosures will be required, including disaggregation of total revenue; information
about performance obligations; changes in contract asset and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates.					
					
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, but early adoption
is permitted under IFRS. The Company is still assessing the impact of the standard on its contracts with
customers.		 			

					
IFRS 16 Leases

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The scope of IFRS 16 includes leases of all
assets, with certain exceptions. A lease is defined as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to
use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. IFRS 16 requires lessees
to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model in a similar way to finance leases under IAS
17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees – leases of ’low-value’ assets (e.g., personal
computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or at the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset).
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will be required to remeasure the lease liability
upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right of-use asset.
Lessor accounting is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under IAS17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish
between two types of leases: operating and finance leases. A lessee can choose to apply the standard using
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The standard’s transition provisions permit
certain reliefs. The standard is effective for year ends beginning 1 January 2019 and early application is
permitted, but not before an entity applies IFRS 15. The Company is still assessing the impact of IFRS 16.		
			
IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
The interpretation clarifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine a date of the transactions for
each payment or receipt of advance consideration.					
The amendments are intended to eliminate diversity in practice, when recognising the related asset, expense
or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to
advance consideration received or paid in a foreign currency. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

In June 2017, the IASB issued IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which
clarifies application of the recognition and measurement requirements in IAS 12 Income Taxes when there
is uncertainty over income tax treatments.					
					
The interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that
affects the application of IAS 12. The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS
12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain
tax treatments.					
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The interpretation specifically addresses the following:
					
• Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately.
• The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities.
• How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and tax rates					
• How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances				
An entity has to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together
with one or more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the
uncertainty should be followed. The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019, but certain transition reliefs are available.			
		

					
IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative – Amendments to IAS 7 					

The amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows are part of the IASB’s Disclosure Initiative and require
an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
The amendments are intended to provide information to help investors better understand changes in
a Company’s debt. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
and early application is permitted. On initial application of the amendment entities are not required to
provide comparative information for preceding periods. Early application is permitted. The Company
will provide the necessary ammendments when the standard becomes effective.			
						

IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses – Amendments to IAS 12

The IASB issued the amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes to clarify the accounting for deferred tax
assets for unrealised losses on debt instruments measured at fair value.				
The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of
taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible		
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should
determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may		
include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.				

The amendments are intended to remove existing divergence in practice in recognising deferred tax
assets for unrealised losses.
					
The ammendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.		
								
Transfers of Investment Property – Amendments to IAS 40 			
The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under construction
or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs
when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence
of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the use of a property does not
provide evidence of a change in use.
					
Entities should apply the amendments prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. An entity
should reassess the classification of property held at that date and, if applicable, reclassify property to
reflect the conditions that exist at that date.					
Retrospective application in accordance with IAS 8 is only permitted if that is possible without the use of
hindsight. Early application of the amendments is permitted and must be disclosed.			
		
The amendments will eliminate diversity in practice. Amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
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IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture -Ammendments to to IFRS 10 and IAS 28					
The ammendments affect the conflict between IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a
subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture . The ammendments clarify that the
gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that constitute business, as defined in IFRS3
Business Combinations, between an investor and its associate and or joint venture, is recognised in full. Any
gain or loss is resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that does not constitute a business, however,
is recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture.
The effective date was postponed indefinitely. The Company will consider the ammendments where
applicable when they become effective.					
					
Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards 2014-2016 cycle (issued in December 2016)
				
Below is a list of those amendments issued for the 2014-2016 cycle.

					
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 				

Clarification that measuring investees at fair value through profit or loss is an investment by investment
choice.
					
The amendments clarify that:					
• An entity that is a venture capital organisation, or other qualifying entity, may elect, at initial recognition
on an investment-by-investment basis, to measure its investments in associates and joint ventures at fair
value through profit or loss.					
• If an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is
an investment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity method, elect to retain the fair value
measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity
associate’s or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment
entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the date on which (a) the investment entity associate or
joint venture is initially recognised; (b) the associate or joint venture becomes an investment entity; and
(c) the investment entity associate or joint venture first becomes a parent.			
• The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 2018, with earlier
application permitted. If an entity applies those amendments for an earlier period, it must disclose that
fact.
					
• The Company will consider the amendments in preparing its financial statements when they become
effective. 					

					
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities					

Clarification of the scope of the disclosure requirements in IFRS 12
The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in IFRS 12, other than those in paragraphs B10–
B16, apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate (or a portion of its interest in
a joint venture or an associate) that is classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for
sale.
				
The amendments are effective from 1 January 2017 and must be applied retrospectively. Willdale Limited
will consider the amendment, if applicable, when they become effective				
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.5.1 Taxes					
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.		

							
2.5.1.1 Current income tax					

The currently payable income tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
as reported in the statement of comprehensive income because of items of income or expenses that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.			
						
Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or equity is
recognised in other comprehensive income or equity and not in profit or loss for the period. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situation in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.			
							
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

								
2.5.1.2 Deferred Tax					

Deferred tax is provided for using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes. Deferred tax liabilities ar recognised for all taxable differences.				
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilized.					
					
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax assets to be recovered.					
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates(and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.					
					
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.		
			

2.5.1.3 Value added tax					

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax except;
* Where value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the value added tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense item as applicable: and 			
* Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of the value added tax included.		
			
The net amount of value added tax from, or payable to the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.					
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2.5.2 Foreign currency transactions					

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities are retranslated at approximate rates of exchange ruling at the
financial year end. All exchange differences arising on settlements or translation of monetary items are
taken to profit or loss.
Non monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates as at the date of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value is determined.

								
2.5.3 Property, Plant and Equipment 				

Property, plant and equipment other than land and buildings is measured at cost, excluding the costs of
day to day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss. Such cost includes
the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria
are met. Land and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and
impairment losses recognised after the date of the revaluation.
				

					

Depreciation is calculated on the following basis over the useful life of the assets.		
* Brickfield land - is amortised on the basis of utilisation of clay against the total estimated clay reserves
remaining					
* Industrial and commercial buildings -2% of cost 					
* Plant and machinery - based on usage hours.					
* Computers, furniture and fittings and motor vehicles varying between 10% and 33% of cost.			
		
Subsequent to initial recognition, Land and buildings are revalued frequently. Revaluations maybe done
where Directors’ deem necessary to ensure that the fair value does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. 					
Any revaluation surplus is recorded in other comprehensive income and hence credited to the asset
revaluation reserve in the equity section of the statement of financial position,except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the
increase is recognised in profit or loss.					
The revaluation surplus is transferred to retained earnings on disposal of the revalued asset.			
		
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an item property, plant and
equipment may be impaired. If such indication exists, the Company makes an estimate of its’s recoverable
amount. Property, plant and equipment’s recoverable amount is the higher of it’s or cash generating unit’s
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual item of property, plant
and equipment, unless it does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
items of property, plant and equipment or groups of property, plant and equipment.				
Where the carrying amount of item of property, plant and equipment exceeds its recoverable amount, the
property, plant and equipments considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.		
								
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the property, plant and equipment.
					
In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculation are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices of investments or other available fair value indicators.
Impairment losses on continuing operations are recognised in profit or loss in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired property, plant and equipment except for property previously
revalued where the evaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case the impairment is also
recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation. 			
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An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Company makes estimates of recoverable amounts. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
					
If that is the case the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is increased to its recoverable
amount.That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined,net of depreciation, had no impairment been recognized for the property, plant and
equipment asset in prior years.					
					
Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount in which case
the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
				
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.				
					
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year
end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.					

2.5.4 Employee benefits					
2.5.4.1 Retirement benefits					

Retirement benefits are provided for employees through the National Social Security Authority (NSSA)
which is also regarded as a defined contribution plan. The cost of retirement benefits for the defined
contribution fund is determined by the amount paid and is charged to profit or loss in the year to which
it relates. The cost of retirement benefits applicable to the National Social Security Authority (NSSA) is
determined by the systematic recognition of legislated contributions and is recognised in profit or loss.

				
2.5.4.2 Short term employee benefits

				

Short term employee benefits such as salaries and bonuses are expensed as the related service is
performed. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the company has a legal or
constructive obligation to pay the amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.		
			

2.5.5 Inventory					

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost , established on the FIFO basis, and net realisable value. In the
case of work in progress and finished goods, cost includes an appropriated portion of manufacturing
overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
		

					
2.5.6 Cash and cash equivalents
				

Cash and short term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on
hand and short term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. Subsequent to initial
recognition, cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost.				
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and shortterm deposits as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.				

2.5.7 Provisions 					

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.		
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2.5.8 Related party disclosures

				

Transactions with related parties are carried out on an arms length basis except where stated
differently.					

					
2.5.9 Revenue and other income recognition					

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue
is recognition. 				

					
2.5.9.1 Sale of goods 				

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the good have passed to the buyer, usually on dispatch of the goods.				

2.5.9.2 Interest income					

Interest income is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

					
2.5.9.3 Rental income					

Rental income arising from operating lease is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in other income in the statement of comprehensive income. 				

2.5.10 Borrowing costs					

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the respective asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with borrowing of funds.

				
2.5.11 Financial assets					
					
2.5.11.1 Initial recognition and measurement					

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

				

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss. Purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades), are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset.					

Subsequent measurement					
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described below:

									
2.5.11.2 Loans and receivables					

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment.				
				
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised
or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. The category applies to trade and other
receivables and cash and bank balances.					
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2.5.11.3 De-recognition of financial assets					

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is de-recognised when:					
* The rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired				
* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass
through’ arrangement; and either
				
(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or		
(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.					
					
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset nor ransferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement in the asset.
				
In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
							
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

				
2.5.11.4 Amortised cost					

Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is computed using the effective interest method.					
The calculation takes into account any premium or discount on acquisition and includes transaction
costs and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.				

2.5.11.5 Impairment of financial assets					

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.		
A financial asset or group financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliablyestimated . Evidence of
impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficult, default or delinquency in interest or principalpayments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.					
					
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount t of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial assets original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through use of an allowance account. The amount of
the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised , the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed, to the extent that the carrying value
of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.
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Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. In relation to trade
receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability
of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Company will not be able to collect
all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The carrying amount of the receivable is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. 					

					
2.5.12 Financial Liabilities
				
					
2.5.12.1 Initial recognition and measurement
				

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss or loans and borrowings as appropriate. The Company determines the classification of its
financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in
the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.				

					
2.5.12.2 Subsequent measurement					

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below: Interest
bearing loans and borrowings. After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.					

					
2.5.12.3 Derecognition of financial liabilities				

A financially liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

				
2.5.13 Leases					

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date, whether fulfillment of the arrangements is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in any arrangement.
				

					
2.5.13.1 Company as a lessee			

		

Finance leases which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs
in the statement of comprehensive income.
					
A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty
that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.					
			
Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the statement of comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.							

			
2.5.13.2 Company as a lessor					

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all risks and benefits of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same bases
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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2.5.14 Fair value measurement

				

The Company measures non-financial assets such as land and buildings at fair value at reporting date.
Also, fair values of financial instruments measured at amortised cost are disclosed. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
					
• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or					
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability		
				
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
							
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.				
						
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.					
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:			
• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable				
• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable					
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.
				

2.5.15 Current versus non-current classification					

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/noncurrent classification. An asset is classified as current when it is:				
Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading					
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period							

		

All other assets are classified as non-current. A liability is current when:			
• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle				
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading					
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.
				

					

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.					
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.			
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2.5.16 Segment Information					

IFRS 8, Operating Segments, is applicable to the Company. However, the Company currently has one
reporting segment due to the nature of its business, which is the manufacture and selling of bricks
to one local market (i.e. Zimbabwe) and various customers, non of whom are classified as major
customers.

				
2.5.17 Investment in a joint venture					

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement , which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. Willdale Limited’s investments in its joint
venture is accounted for using the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investmnet in a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying
amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Company’s share of net assets
of the joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither armotised nor individually tested for
impairment.					
					
The statement of profit or loss reflects Willdlale’s share of the results of operations of the joint venture.
Any change in other comprehensive income (OCI) of the joint venture is presented as part of Willdale’s
OCI.
				
In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture, Willdale
Limited recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity.
					
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between Willdale Limited and the joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the joint venture. The aggregate of Willdale Limited’s
share of profit or loss of a joint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income outside operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax and noncontrolling interests in the subsidiaries of the joint venture.						
				
The financial statements of the joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as Willdale
Limited. The joint venture uses similar accounting policies as Willdale Limited. After application of the
equity method the Company determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on
its investment in its joint venture. At each reporting date, the Company determines whether there is
objective evidence whether the investment in the joint venture is impaired.
If there is such evidence, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the joint venture and its carrying value, then recognises the loss as ‘share of
loss of a joint venture’ in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 		
								
Upon loss of significant influence over the joint venture, the Company measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal, is recognised in profit or loss. When the remaining investment
constitutes significant influence, it is accounted for as investment in associate.				

						
2.5.18 Non-current assets classified as held for sale 		

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-current
assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal
of an asset (disposal group), excluding finance costs and income tax expense.				
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The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and
the assetor disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to
complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or
that the decision to sale will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the plan to sell the asset
and the sale expected to be completed within one year from the date of the classification.		
								
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as
held for sale.
				
Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the statement
of financial position.
				

					
2.5.19 Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty
				
2.5.19.1 Estimation uncertainty
					

The key assumptions made concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below:				

			
2.5.19.2 Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment

The Company assesses useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment each year
taking into consideration past experience, technology changes and the local operating environment.
Refer to note 8 for the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment.				

2.5.19.3 Revaluation of land and buildings					

The Company’s Directors carried out a revaluation of land and buildings in September 2017.
Fair value is determined by reference to open market value in use. Refer to note 8 for the carrying
amount of land and buildings and the key assumptions applied in determining the fair value of land
and buildings.					
					

2.5.19.4 Impairment of non-financial assets		

			

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at
arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow (DCF) model. The cash flows
are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that
the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s
performance or the cash generating unit being tested.
					
The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected
future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.				
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Notes to the financial statements
September
2017

September
2016

US$

US$

9,683,280

7,761,998

255,147

94,937

40

(9)

(122)

12,881

Rental income - lease of space for base station and idle
land

76,350

47,162

Transport and handling proceeds

79,179

-

Sundry - Sale of scrap, and rubble

99,700

34,903

72,000

70,760

109,402

113,104

Bad debts

28,093

(4,121)

Legal expenses

13,251

18,170

1,015,015

891,090

Brickfield land and buildings

312,084

294,057

Plant and equipment

305,490

199,261

Motor Vehicles

386,440

386,778

11,001

10,994.15

Staff costs

2,166,212

1,886,717

Salaries and wages

1,984,273

1,721,606

Pension - NSSA

37,473

33,579

Leave pay

39,340

14,812

Medical aid

37,810

32,204

Bonuses

20,040

21,961

Transport

25,368

23,244

Standard development and training levy

26,683

19,199

Workers compensation insurance fund (WCIF) and NEC
expenses

18,818

30,721

(23,593)

(10,609)

3.1

Income from sale of bricks

3.2

Other income:
Exchange gain or loss
(Loss) Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

3.3

39

Operating profit
The following items have been charged in arriving at the
operating profit:
Auditors' remuneration
Directors' emoluments - fees

Depreciation

Computers, furniture and fittings

- Reversal of Retrenchment costs provision
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4

Interest expense/ income

4.1

Expense

833,777

701,223

13,225

-

- Overdraft and loans

391,326

307,013

- Interest on redeemable preference shares

386,597

386,597

42,629

7,613

43,209

7,950

580

337

42,629

7,613

451,094

342,004

-

-

451,094

342,004

(146,188)

(309,879)

(37,643)

(79,794)

Disallowable expenses

39,647

9,274

Impact of( profit) / loss on joint venture

(4,648)

5,066

Prior year over provision-Tax rate change on land

-

(276,550)

Impact of mining land classified as held for sale

(589,617)

-

141,167

-

-

-

(451,094)

(342,004)

- Accounts payable

Finance lease liability
Income
Interest on bank balances
Interest on lease receivable
5

Taxation
Current tax
Deferred tax
Tax reconciliation
Loss before tax
Notional taxation on profit at 25.75% (2016: 25.75%)

Expired losses derecognised
Other permanent differences
Total Tax

Disallowable expenses include penalties, donations ,entertainment, consultancy
and provisions.
6

(Loss)/earnings per share

6.1

Basic (loss)/earnings per share
Basic( loss )/earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss)
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
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The calculation of (loss)/earnings per share is based on
the following figures:
(Loss)/profit after tax
Weighted average number of shares in issue
Basic( loss)/profit per share (cents)

304,906

32,125

1,778,001,428

1,778,001,428

0.017

0.002

Diluted(loss)/earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss)
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary
shares that would be issued on conversion of all dillutive potential shares into ordinary shares.

6.2

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share
The Company has convertible preference shares which are antidilutive as conversion will
result in an increase in earnings per share. As a result, the conversion of preference shares has
not been taken into account in calculating diluted earnings per share

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (cents)
7

0.017

0.002

Segment information
IFRS 8, Operating Segments, is applicable to the company. However, the company currently
has one reporting segment due to the nature of its business, which is the manufacture and
selling of bricks to one local market (i.e. Zimbabwe) and various customers, non of whom are
classified as major customers.
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8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

8.1 Property, plant and equipment - 2017

Land and
Buildings

Plant and
Equipment

Motor
Vehicles

Computers,
Furniture &
Fittings

Total
2017

US$

US$

US$

US$

US$

21,716,268

3,365,975

1,953,071

120,561

27,155,875

Additions

-

283,158

12,500

13,808

309,466

Disposals

(1,682)

-

-

(330)

(2,012)

Transfer to Assets held
for sale

(2,841,526)

-

-

-

(2,841,526)

At 30 September 2017

18,873,060

3,649,133

1,965,571

134,039

24,621,803

Cost / valuation
At 1 October 2016

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
At 1 October 2016

(1,205,639)

(1,214,352)

(964,389)

(106,126)

(3,490,506)

(312,084)

(305,490)

(386,440)

(11,001)

(1,015,015)

-

-

-

209

209

-

-

-

-

(1,517,723)

(1,519,842)

(1,350,829)

(116,918)

(4,505,312)

Carrying amount at
30 September 2017

17,355,337

2,129,291

614,742

17,121

20,116,491

Carrying amount at
30 September 2016

20,510,629

2,151,623

988,682

14,435

23,665,369

Land and
Buildings

Plant and
Equipment

Motor
Vehicles

Computers,
Furniture &
Fittings

Total
2016

US$

US$

US$

US$

US$

21,714,588

3,279,330

2,007,171

114,985

27,116,074

1,680

86,645

5,000

5,686

99,011

Charge for the year
Disposals
Assets held for sale
At 30 September 2017

Property, plant and
equipment - 2016
Cost / valuation
At 1 October 2015
Additions
Disposals

-

-

(59,100)

(110)

(59,210)

21,716,268

3,365,975

1,953,071

120,561

27,155,875

At 1 October 2015

(911,582)

(1,015,091)

(623,899)

(95,150)

(2,645,722)

Charge for the year

(294,057)

(199,261)

(386,778)

(10,994)

(891,090)

-

-

46,288

18

46,306

At 30 September 2016

(1,205,639)

(1,214,352)

(964,389)

(106,126)

(3,490,506)

Carrying amount at 30
September 2016

20,510,629

2,151,623

988,682

14,435

23,665,369

20,803,006

2,264,239

1,383,272

19,835

24,470,352

At 30 September 2016

Disposals

Carrying amount at
30 September 2015
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The gross carrying amount of property, plant and equipment which is fully depreciated but is still in
use is $118,137 (2016: $103,949)
8.2 Revaluation of land and buildings
Fair value of the properties was determined by using the market comparable method. This means
that valuations performed by the valuer are based on active market prices, significantly adjusted for
difference in the nature,location or condition of the specific property. As at the date of revaluation on
24 February 2013 , the properties’ fair values are based on valuations performed by ABS Asset Valuers
and Managers and Central Real Estate respectively, accredited independent valuers.
Significant unobservable valuation input:
Price per square metre

Range
US$1.25 - US$1.57

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated price per square metre in isolation would result in a
significantly higher (lower) fair value.Refer to note 19.2 for the fair value hierachy.
If land and buildings were measured using the cost model, without revaluation, the carrying amounts
would have been as follows:
2017

2016

US$

US$

Cost

11,658,792

11,658,792

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

(1,810,664)

(1,577,488)

Carrying amount

9,848,128

10,081,304

8.3 Certain immovable assets to the value of US$5.2m (2016: US$4.550m) have been offered as security for
the bank facilities - refer to note 16.
8.4 Clay reserves are included in the value of land.
8.5 Assets held for sale as at 30 September are as follows:
Land

2017

2016

US$2,841,526

-

On 24 May 2017 shareholders approved the disposal of 190.1 hectares of Teneriffe land to raise funds
to retire interest bearing debt.
The Board considered the land to meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale at that date for the
following reasons:
• The land is available for immediate sale and can be sold to the buyer in its current condition.
• The actions to complete the sale were initiated and expected to be completed within one year
from the date of initial classification.
• A potential buyer has been identified and negotiations as at the reporting date are at an advance
stage.
9 Investment in joint venture using the equity method
Willdale Limited has a 50% interest in Willdale Transport Services (Pvt) Limited, a joint venture that
provides brick transportation services. The company is situated at 19.5km peg, Mt Hampden, Harare,
Zimbabwe.
The Company’s interest in Willdale Transport Services Limited is accounted for using the equity method
in the financial statements. Summarised financial information of the joint venture, based on its IFRS
financial statements, and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in the consolidated
financial statements are set out below:
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September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

24,584

-

-

44,258

Share of profit

18,051

(19,674)

Balance as at 30 September

42,634

24,584

2017

2016

36,150

68,916

881,005

1,086,186

Current liabilities, including the short term lease portion

(378,730)

(363,098)

Non-current liabilities including the finance lease

(453,158)

(742,835)

Equity

85,267

49,168

Company’s carrying amount of the investment

42,634

24,584

1,425,881

188,781

Balance as at 1 October
Acquisition of interest in joint venture

Summarised statement of financial position of Willdale Transport
Services
Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents
Non-current assets

Summarised statement of profit or loss of Willdale Transport Services
Revenue
Cost of sales

(1,023,420)

(96,741)

(261,099)

(129,156)

(91,603)

(20,310)

49,759

(57,427)

(13,658)

18,078

Profit/(Loss) for the year (continuing operations)

36,101

(39,348)

Company’s share of profit/(loss) for the year

18,051

(19,674)

September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

79,127

110,321

Work in progress

883,703

1,178,984

Finished goods

762,016

519,978

Consumables

815,786

806,891

2,540,632

2,616,174

Administrative expenses, including depreciation
Interest expense
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Income tax expense/
(credit)

10 Inventory
Raw materials

Raw materials, Work in Progress and consumables are valued at cost while finished goods are valued
at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Inventory amounting to $2,250 m was ceded for the loan
reflected in Note 16. During 2017 $7,426,842 ( 2016:$5,844,848) was recognised as an expense for
inventories sold during the year. This is recognised in cost of sales.
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September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

Trade receivables

561,713

436,908

Other - Value added tax

455,686

319,480

34,609

33,592

548,606

90,071

39,298

5,295

11 Trade and other receivables

- Staff debtors
- Advance payments to suppliers
- Willdale Transport
- Prepaid insurance and licences

18,150

11,665

1,658,062

897,011

All the outstanding amounts are short term with varying credit terms not exceeding 30 days. The net
carrying amount of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximate of fair value. No interest is
charged on outstanding debtors. Part of debtors were ceded for the loan reflected in note 16. See Note
18 on credit risk of trade receivables, which discusses how the company manages and measures credit
quality of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired. All the company’s trade and other
receivables have been reviewed for indicators of impairment.
					
As at 30 September 2017, non interest bearing receivables of an initial value of $185,085 (2016:152,428)
with initial terms of 30 days were impaired and fully provided for. The movements in the provision for
impairment of receivables can be reconciled as follows:					
Inventory and receivables amounting to $2,250m have been ceded as security for a bank loan		
				
Individually Impaired
US$
At 1 October 2015

156,549

Charge for the year

-

Utilised
At 30 September 2016
Charge for the year
Utilised
At 30 September 2017
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(4,121)
152,428
32,657
185,085

45

46

Trade receivables ageing
---------------------Past due but not impaired--------------------Neither
past due
nor
Total impaired

31-60
days

61-90
days

91-120
days

>120
days

US$

US$

US$

US$

US$

US$

2017

561,713

277,357

149,298

121,546

13,512

-

2016

436,908

436,908

-

-

-

-

September

September

2017
US$

2016
US$

Short term

112,791

99,827

Long term

116,101

228,893

228,892

328,720

12 Finance lease receivable

The finance lease facility is secured by the vehicles leased. Refer to note 20.4 for more detail about the
leasing arrangement.					
13 Cash and cash equivalents
September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

Cash at banks

796,269

7,323

Cash on hand

7,728

61,268

Total

803,997

68,591
68,591

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash on hand , in banks and investments in money market
instruments					
14 Equity
Authorised
3,000,000,000 (2014: 3,000,000,000)ordinary shares of
US$0.00005 cents each
3,255,000 10% redeemable convertible preference shares of
US$0.0001 each

September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

150,000

150,000

326

326

88,900

88,900

326

326

2,812,885

2,812,885

Issued and fully paid
1 778 001 428 ordinary shares of US$0.00005 cents each
3,255,000 10% redeemable convertible preference shares of
US$0.0001 each
Share premium

Though redeemable preference shares have been considered part of equity for statutory purposes, they
have been recognised as a liability in full due to the terms and conditions attached to them. Refer to note
16.		
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15 Deferred taxation
15.1 Deferred taxation movement
Balance at beginning of year

September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

4,806,238

5,148,242

(451,094)

(342,004)

4,355,144

4,806,238

4,865,495

5,715,490

142,076

-

(566,475)

(809,552)

3,673

1,187

-

(23,879)

(89,625)

(77,009)

4,355,144

4,806,237

US$

US$

142,076

-

4,213,068

4,806,237

4,355,144

4,806,237

Deferred taxation (credited)/charged to
-profit or loss
Balance at end of year
15.2 Deferred taxation analysis
Property, plant and equipment
Land held for sale
Tax on assessed losses
Prepayments
Revenue received in advance
Provisions
Deferred tax liability
15.3 Deferred taxation classification
Relating to assets classified as held for sale
Relating to other assets and liabilities

The Company has estimated acccumulated tax losses of $2,199,901 (2016 : $3,143,891). It is probable
that in the forseeable future, taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be realised.
In future years , the tax losses will provide the company with income tax relief amounting to $566,475
(2016: $809,552). This relief is subject to the company earning sufficient taxable income to utilise the
tax losses within six years of the losses arising. 							
Analysis of the deferred tax effect on assessed tax losses		
Opening balance

Utilisation/ (loss
incurred)

Expired
losses

Closing
balance

US$

US$

US$

US$

2017 Balance

(809,552)

101,910

141,167

(566,475)

2016 Balance

(862,910)

53,358

-

(809,552)

2015 Balance

(1,240,024)

377,114

-

(862,910)

2014 Balance

(998,451)

(241,573)

-

(1,240,024)

2013 Balance

(898,440)

(100,011)

-

(998,451)

2012 Balance

(673,549)

(224,890)

-

(898,440)

2011 Balance

(409,496)

(264,054)

-

(673,549)

2010 Balance

(86,036)

(323,459)

-

(409,496)

2009 Balance

-

(86,036)

-

(86,036)
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September
2017
US$

September
2016
US$

- Bank overdraft

740,761

781,164

- CBZ loan payable within 12 months

429,340

-

210,769

-

1,380,870

781,164

- CBZ Bank

1,207,020

1,905,000

-10% Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares

4,283,986

3,897,389

5,491,006

5,802,389

6,871,876

6,583,553

16 Borrowings
Short term borrowings

- ZB loan payable within 12 months

Notes

Long term borrowings

The CBZ loan was restructured during the year into a 5 year loan of $1.6 million and an overdraft of $1
million at an interest rate of 10%. The loan is secured by a mortgage bond of $5.250 million (2016: 4.050
m) over part of the land and buildings and cession of inventory and receivables.
						
The company secured a 12 month loan of $0.25 million from ZB Bank at an interest rate of 11.23% per
annum.The facility is secured by a mortgage bond of $0.5 million over part of land and buildings. Refer
to Notes 8, 10 and 11. 						
Redeemable preference shares							
On 10 June 2014 the company raised $3,255,002 through the issue of 10% redeemable cumulative
preference shares at a subscription price of $1 per share. Dividends are payable semi annually and the
shares are convertible. The preference shares are redeemable from year 3 at a nil penalty to the company.
							
Preference shares plus any declared but unpaid dividends on such shares are convertible into ordinary
shares of the company at the 5th anniversary from the issue date of the preference shares and the the
converted ordinary shares will rank pari passu with the existing issued ordinary shares.
							
The conversion price will be the higher of the Net Asset Value per share of the company using the recently
published audited accounts of the company or the volume weighted average price of Willdale Limited
shares over the previous 60 trading days. The preference shares have been classified as a liability since
they are redeemable and are convertible into a variable number of shares.
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September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

Trade payables

557,128

1,189,089

Acruals and other payables

380,533

483,863

17 Trade and other payables

Brick deposits

2,061,248

791,539

2,998,909

2,464,491

Trade payables are mainly non-interest bearing and normally settled within 30 days . Terms vary
depending on negotiations with the suppliers.
17.2 Provisions
Leave Pay
US$

Audit fees
US$

Rehabilitation

US$

Total
US$

86,359

70,760

60,276

217,395

Utilised during the year

(43,040)

(33,281)

(4,923)

(81,244)

Arising during the year

59,380

72,000

4,923

136,304

At 30 September 2017

102,699

109,479

60,276

272,455

At 1 October 2015

101,794

69,875

30,509

202,178

Utilised during the year

(52,208)

(69,875)

-

(122,083)

Arising during the year

36,773

70,760

29,767

137,300

At 30 September 2016

86,359

70,760

60,276

217,395

At 1 October 2016

Leave pay is normally discharged by way of employees going on paid leave or by payments In the form
of cash in lieu of leave. The audit fee balance is due in the coming year. The rehabilitation provision is
for mining pits rehabilitation and will be utilised in the coming year.					
18 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies					
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of finance lease(for Willdale Transport
Services),loans payable ,redeemable preference shares and trade payables. 				
			
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Company’s operations. The
Company has various financial assets such as trade receivables and cash and short term deposits, which
arise directly from its operations. The Company does not use derivative financial instruments.Exposure
to credit,interest rate and liquidity risk arise in the normal course of the business and these are the main
risks arising from Financial Instruments.							
18.1 Interest rate risk					
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.
						
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s
short-term and long term debt obligations and overdrafts with floating interest rates. The company
manages its interest rate risk by having a portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.
Due to prevailing funding constraints, the Company does not have a policy in place which stipulates
the ratios between fixed and variable interest rates to maintain. The Company does not have any
instruments to manage interest rates. The Company’s net interest bearing assets and borrowings are as
follows:
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Year end Interest
rate
Cash at bank

September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

variable

803,997

68,591

Fixed / variable

Overdraft

10%

fixed

(740,761)

(781,164)

Short term borrowings

10%

fixed

(112,791)

(99,827)

Medium to long term borrowings
10%

fixed

(1,323,121)

(2,133,893)

Redeemable preference shares.
10%

fixed

(4,283,986)

(3,897,389)

(5,656,662)

(6,843,682)

18.2 Interest rate sensitivity analysis						
The table below illustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Company’s reported profit before tax to a
1 percentage point increase or decrease in interest rates, assuming all other variables were unchanged.
The sensitivity rate of 1 percentage point represents the Directors’ assessment of a reasonably possible
change. There is no impact on equity.
						
The analysis has been prepared using the following assumptions:
The amount of liability outstanding at the reporting date is assumed to have been outstanding for the
whole year.					
Fixed rate financial instruments that are carried at ammortised cost are not subject to interest rate risk
for the purpose of this analysis.					
September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

Interest rate increase by 1 percentage point

21,767

30,149

Interest rate decrease by 1 percentage point

(21,767)

(30,149)
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18.3 Liquidity risk						
Liquidity risk is that the company might be unable to meet its obligations.The Company monitors its
risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of
both its financial investments and financial assets (e.g. accounts receivable) and projected cashflows
from operations.
					
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s assets and liabilities at 30
September 2017						

2017

Within 3
months

Between 4 &
12 months

More than
12 months
but less
than 5 years

US$

US$

US$

US$

(927,944)

(515,483)

(7,127,540)

(8,570,967)

(34,804)

(104,412)

(121,548)

(260,764)

(937,661)

-

-

(937,661)

(1,900,409)

(619,895)

(7,249,088)

(9,769,392)

635,620

-

-

635,620

34,804

104,412

121,548

260,764

803,997

-

-

803,997

1,474,421

104,412

121,548.00

1,700,381

US$

US$

US$

US$

(609,308) (5,957,037.00)

(6,794,835)

Total

LIABILITIES
Borrowings
Finance lease
Trade and other payables
ASSETS
Financial assets
Accounts receivable (including lease receivables)
Lease receivables
Cash & cash equivalents

2016
LIABILITIES
Borrowings
Finance lease
Trade and other payables

(228,490)
(26,781)

(91,513)

(263,227)

(381,521)

(1,890,347)

-

-

(1,890,347)

(2,145,618)

(700,821)

(6,220,264)

(9,066,703)

732,976

-

-

732,976

68,591

-

-

68,591

801,567

-

-

801,567

ASSETS
Financial assets
Accounts receivable (including lease receivables)
Cash & cash equivalents

18.4 Foreign Currency Risk Management						
The Company does not have significant exposure to foreign currency risk as at year end.			
									
18.5 Credit risk						
The Company trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. Management reviewed the accounts
receivable balances that are neither past due nor impaired against the payments history of the respective
debtors and believe that the amounts outstanding will be settled on their due dates. 				
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Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Company’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant. The maximum exposure is the carrying amount as disclosed in Note 11. There
are no significant concetrations of credit risk arising from the Company’s financial assets.			
								
With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Company, which comprise cash
and cash equivalents, the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counter party, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. 					
The Company’s cash and cash equivalents are placed with high quality credit financial institutions.		
						
18.6 Capital Management						
Capital includes ordinary shares and reserves attributable to the company’s shareholders. The primary
objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.				
		
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

Interest bearing loans and borrowings (Note 16)

7,100,768

6,912,273

Trade and other payables (Note 17)

2,998,909

2,681,886

Less: cash and short-term deposits

(803,997)

(68,591)

Net debt

9,295,680

9,525,568

Capital

13,507,794

13,202,887

Capital and net debt

22,803,475

22,728,455

41%

42%

19.1 Fair value measurement 					
The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities approximates the fair values of the respective
financial assests and financial liabilities except for the redeemable preference shares which have the
following values:						

Redeemable preference shares
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September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

Carrying
amount

Fair value

Carrying
amount

Fair value

4,283,986

3,092,250

3,897,389

3,092,250

19.2 The following tables provide the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.
Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 30 September 2017:
Quoted
prices in
active
markets

Significant
observable
inputs

Significant
unobservable
inputs

Total

(Level 1)

(Level 2)

(Level 3)

US$

US$

US$

US$

17,355,337

-

-

17,355,337

2017
Assets measured at fair value:
Revalued property, plant
and equipment (Note 8):
Land and buildings

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.
Liabilities measured at fair value:
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
Convertible preference
shares

3,092,250

3,092,250

-

-

20,510,629

-

-

20,510,629

2016
Assets measured at fair
value:
Revalued property, plant
and equipment (Note 8)*:
Land and buildings

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.			
Liabilities measured at fair value:
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed (Note 14):
Convertible preference
shares

3,092,250

3,092,250

-

-

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.			
20 Commitments
September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

309,466

99,011

20.1 Commitments for capital expenditure
Authorised and contracted for
Authorised but not yet contracted for

428,832

807,287

738,298

906,298

The capital expenditure is to be financed from internal working capital			
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20.2 Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee
The company has a current commited lease for offices in the central business district. The lease has
an average remaining life of one year with a renewal option included in the contract. There are no
restrictions placed upon the company by entering into this lease. Future minimum rentals payable
under this cancellable operating lease as at 30 September are as follows:
September
2017
US$

September
2016
US$

Within one year

-

-

After one year but not more than five years

-

-

20.3 Operating lease commitments - Company as lessor		
The Company has entered into commercial leases for its idle land. Both leases have a remaining life of 2
years. The first lease includes a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on an annual basis
according to prevailing market conditions. Future minimum rentals receivable under these cancellable
operating leasesas at 30 September are as follows:						
September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

Within one year

15,000

15,000

After one year but not more than five years

15,000

30,000

30,000

45,000

The other lease agreement is based on uncertain variables and future minimum rentals receivable
cannot be determined. Rentals received in the current year amounted to $73,356 (2016: $47,162).
20.4 Finance lease and hire purchase commitments
Willdale Limited leased assets under a 3 year finance lease,which in turn were subleased to Willdale
Transport (Private ) Limited under similar terms as the head lease with the lesee. The lease liability to
the lesee and the lease receivable from Wlldale Transport as well as the interest expense on the finance
lease liabilty and interest income on the finance lease receivable is the same. The lease obligation was
recorded in the Company's financial records as the Company has the primary esponsibilty to pay the
lease instalments to the lease. Since the head lease and sub lease were concluded at the same time , the
property, plant and equipment note does not show changes as a result of these leased assets.
Future minimum lease payments under finance leases contracts, together with the present value of
the net minimum lease payments which applies ffor both the finance lease liability and the finance
lease receivable are as follows:
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September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

Minimum
payments

Present value
of payments

Minimum
payments

Present
value of
payments

Within one year

139,216

115,874

142,456

99,827

After one year but not more than five years

121,548

103,675

263,564

228,893

Total minimum lease payments

260,764

219,549

406,020

328,720

Less amounts representing finance charges

( 41,215)

-

(77,300)

-

219,549

328,720

328,720

Present value of minimum lease payments

219,549

The finance lease liablity and receivable are disclosed on the statement of financial position as follows ;
September
2017
US$

September
2016
US$

Non current

103,675

228,893

Current

115,874

99,827

Total

219,549

328,720

21 Contingencies
The Company is involved in disputes with former employees who are claiming compensation citing
unfair dismissal. The cases are being dealt with through the Company's lawyers. The directors believe
that disclosure of all the information required by IAS 37may be prejudicial to the Company's position in
the disputes.
22 Related party disclosures
The balances outstanding to and from related parties are disclosed in trade and other payables
and trade and other receivables.
22.1 Compensation of key management personnel for the company for the year was as follows:

Short term employee benefits
Post employment benefits - NSSA

September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

468,394

428,265

4,370

3,777

472,764

432,042

Key management include the Chief Executive Officer, the Finance Director and heads of department.
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22.2 Transactions with key management personel
22.2.1 Directors and management purchased product from the company worth $33,790(2016: $42,155).
for the period ended 30 September 2017
22.2.2 Entities related to key management and shareholders
During the year under review, purchases at normal market prices were made by the Company from
Mike Harris Toyota and Professional Security.
The companies have a common shareholder as Ranus Investments, a shareholder with significant
inflience in the company.The total value of related party transactions is as follows:

Professional Security Services (security services)

September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

43,647

46,909

Mike Harris Toyota (Servicing of motor vehicle)

3,765

1,115

47,412

48,024

Amounts outstanding to and from related parties as at 30 September 2017 and 30
September 2016 respectively were as follows:					

Professional Security Services
Mike Harris

September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

5,247

(4,807)

(2,492)

290

Aitoc Motors

6,761

6,761

Total

9,515

2,244

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made at terms equivalent to those that prevail in
arms length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash.
Unless otherwise stated, none of the transactions incorporate special terms and no guarentees were
given or received for the period ended 30 September 2017. The Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the
related party operates.

22.2.3 Transactions with Willdale Transport Services
Transport Services
Rentals, management fees and other operational costs charged

September

September

2017

2016

US$

US$

1,496,051

188,781

31,200

9,143

1,527,251

197,924

219,549

328,720

797

33,058

220,346

361,778

21,261

36,400

21,261

36,400

Balances with Willdale Transport Services
Amounts from Willdale Transport Services
Finance lease receivable
Willdale Transport Services-Other debtor
Amounts outstanding to Willdale Transport Services
Transport Services
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23 Events after the reporting period
There were no significant events that happened after the reporting date but before the authorisation of
these financial statements that require to be disclosed or adjusted for in the financial statements.

SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION
Top 20 shareholders as at 30 September 2017

Shareholding

%

1 DAHAW TRADING (PRIVATE) LIMITED

703,274,220

39.55

2 RANUS INVESTMENTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

402,617,371

22.64

3 OLD MUTUAL LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY OF ZIMBABWE LIMITED

273,077,567

15.36

4 ROY TURNER

54,570,989

3.07

5 KAMBA, THOMPSON TOGAREPI

21,137,180

1.19

6 NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY AUTHORITY

20,342,853

1.14

7 NYARADZO FUNERAL SERVICES

19,701,600

1.11

8 WORKERS COMPENSATION INSURANCE FUND

13,709,153

0.77

9 WILHELM HENRY ALFRED HANS-ALBERT KUHLMANN,

12,000,000

0.67

10 DRAWCARD ENTEPRISES (PVT) LTD,

11,989,036

0.67

11 DUSKE, KEIDO

10,219,439

0.57

12 REMO NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED

8,722,936

0.49

13 FRASER, BRIAN HENRY KENNETH

8,505,257

0.48

14 MATARANYIKA, PHILLIP

8,462,582

0.48

15 CREDIT INSURANCE COMPANY,

7,000,404

0.39

16

NYARADZO FUNERAL ASSURANCE COMPANY

6,421,218

0.36

17

STANBIC NOMINEES (PRIVATE)LIMITED

5,841,733

0.33

18 REVOLTA, ANRDEW JAMES

5,461,339

0.31

19 MBIBA DAVID

5,236,906

0.29

20 J SOFT (PVT) LTD

4,951,100

0.28

OTHER

174,758,545

9.83

TOTAL

1,778,001,428

100.00

“BUILD TO LAST WITH WILLDALE BRICKS”
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One Brick At a Time
WE BUILD A NATION

62

University of Zimbabwe Project

Quality Durability Diversity

